
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, MAY 2, 2022 
 
 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
         

1. ROLL CALL   
 
2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA   

 
3. OLD BUSINESS 

a. NPO Support Policy Discussion (Mayor)  
b. Non-resident Fee Presentation (Parks and Recreation)  
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET  
Invocation (Pastor DJ Coles, Cornerstone Church)   
Pledge of Allegiance 

 
III. ROLL CALL   

 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of April 18, 2022 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS  
 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  

B. SU-2-22 William Wooten – (Outdoor Storage) E. side of N. George Street between Holly and Vine Streets 
(Planning) 

C. SU-3-22 Gregory Sakas– (Retail Sales) North side of E. US 70 HWY. between Millers Chapel Rd. and E. 
Ash St. Extension (Planning)  

D. Z-5-22 WithersRavenel – N. Oak Forest Rd. between Central Heights Rd. and Gateway Dr. and located 
primarily in the City’s one-mile ETJ (Planning)  

E. Contract Extension for Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority (GWTA) Marketing and Public 
Relations Services with Quest Corporation of America, Inc. (Planning) 

 
VIII. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  

 
IX. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
X. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  

F. Mental Health Month Proclamation 
G. Peace Officers’ Memorial Day Proclamation 
H. National Day Of Prayer Proclamation 
I. Military Appreciation Month Proclamation 
J. Municipal Clerks Week Proclamation 

 
XI. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  

 
XII. CLOSED SESSION 

 
XIII. ADJOURN 



Parks and Recreation 
Program Fees

Felicia L. Brown, CPRP
Parks and Recreation Director

May 2, 2022



Background on P&R Program Fees
• Collection of user fees for programs and for the use of recreational facilities is an 

accepted practice and provides an important source of revenue for the City of 
Goldsboro

• During their June 17, 2002 meeting, our City Council voted to end distinction 
between resident and non-resident fees, charging one universal fee per program

• Our program participation numbers have greatly increased since then, with a 
significant increase in non-residents participating; all participants pay the same fee

• Goldsboro population in 2010 was 36,437; in 2015, the population was 35,592; 
while the population in 2020 was 34,250

• Should we charge a different fee for non-residents?

4/27/2022 2



Youth Soccer Participation

611
643

702

0

593
627

848

Spring 2019 Fall 2019 Spring 2020** Fall 2020 Spring 2021 Fall 2021 Spring 2022

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
N

um
be

rs

** Registered participants; season did not occur due to COVID

Youth Soccer Seasons at Bryan Multi-Sports Complex

4/27/2022 3



Fees Charged by Other P&R Departments
• Wilson Parks & Recreation Youth Sports Fees - $35 for resident; $52 for non-resident

• Wake Forest Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Youth Sports Fees - $60 for 
resident; $100 for non-resident

• Greenville Recreation & Parks Youth Sports Fees – varies; usually $10 more for non-
resident

• Raleigh Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Youth Sports Fees – $40-$55 for 
resident, depending on sport; $15 more for non-resident

4/27/2022 4



Fees Charged by Other P&R Departments 
(continued)

• Clayton Parks & Recreation Youth Sports Fees - $30-$40 for resident; $60-$80 for 
non-resident

• Clinton Parks & Recreation Youth Sports Fees – varies; $10 more for non-residents

• Mt. Olive Parks & Recreation Youth Sports Fees - $30 per participant, universal fee

• Kinston/Lenoir County Parks & Recreation Youth Sports Fees – one universal fee 
paid by participants

4/27/2022 5



Goldsboro P&R Proposed Fee Schedule
Current Fee New Fee Resident Discounted Fee

Youth Sports Leagues (Soccer, 
Basketball, Softball/Baseball, Flag Football, etc.)

$45.00 $60.00 $45.00

Athletic Field Reservation

- 1 Field, 4 Hours, No Lights $60.00 $90.00 $75.00

- 1 Field, 4 Hours, W/ Lights $100.00 $200.00 $150.00

- 1 Field, 1 Day and 1 Night $210.00 $325.00 $275.00

Picnic Shelters – 4hr blocks $30.00 $50.00 $40.00

Gazebo – 4hr blocks $40.00 $60.00 $50.00

Park House – 4hr blocks $70.00 $100.00 $80.00



Goldsboro P&R Proposed Fee Schedule (cont.)
Current Fee New Fee Resident Discounted Fee

WA Foster Center

- Gymnasium (2hr blocks) $150.00 $250.00 $200.00

- Commercial Events (2hr blocks) (AAU 
Tournaments, etc.)

$300.00 $400.00 $350.00

- Sports Camps (2hr blocks) $150.00 $250.00 $200.00

- Multi-Purpose Room (2hr blocks) $150.00 $250.00 $200.00

- Kitchen (2hr blocks) $50.00 $75.00 $60.00

Herman Park Center

- Auditorium (2hr blocks) $135.00 $175.00 $150.00

- Commercial Events (2hr blocks) $300.00 $400.00 $350.00

- Meeting Room 1 or 2 (2hr blocks) $40.00 $60.00 $50.00

- Kitchen or Patio (hourly) $30.00 $50.00 $40.00



Who Qualifies for Resident Discount?
• City of Goldsboro Resident – water bill, property tax statement (applies to all 

children in household)

• City of Goldsboro Property Owner – not applicable for others in household

• City of Goldsboro Employee – not applicable for others in household

4/27/2022 8



Items for Council to Consider
• Charge a fee for Youth sports and offer a Resident Discount

• Charge fees for rentals and offer a Resident Discount

• Charge fees for programs and offer a Resident Discount

It is on the participant to prove residency – property tax, water bill, etc.
Example: $55 for Youth Soccer; $45 with Resident Discount

4/27/2022 9



QUESTIONS?

4/27/2022 10



1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
APRIL 18, 2022 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council 
Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on April 18, 2022. 

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones (participating via Zoom) 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Gene Aycock  

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 

Absent: Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 

Adoption of the Agenda.  
Councilwoman Jones requested the removal of Item K, Authorization of sale of jointly owned property 

for 209 and 213 N. Georgia Avenue (2 lots) (Coe) from the consent agenda and move it to Items Requiring 
Individual Action. Councilman Gaylor made a motion to adopt the agenda with the amended change. The motion 
was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the 
motion.    

Old Business. 
309 Walnut Street Sewer Issue. Mr. Zachary Lilly shared information regarding the Walnut Street area, 

the sewer issue and shared the minutes from 1922 and a city map from 1928 regarding sewer lines on Walnut 
Street (Exhibit A). Council discussed the issue with Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director and City Attorney 
Lawrence. City Attorney Lawrence shared information concerning deeds, easements and right of ease process. 
He stated the city did not own it but council could decide how to approach it. If Council makes a decision 
regarding Mr. Lilly’s property, he recommends being prepared to apply that to everybody because you have to 
treat everyone fairly.  

Council discussed the city map from 1928 with Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director. Mr. Fletcher shared there 
are other private lines/streets that do not have access to city sewer.   

Councilman Gaylor shared he would like a policy created to annex private sewer lines into the city sewer with a 
special assessment.  

Mayor Ham stated it is the opinion of our manager and our attorney that the city has no responsibility for the 
maintenance of this line.  

NPO Support Process. Mayor Ham shared information regarding the nonprofit support request process. 
Council discussed the process document that was sent by the manager in his weekly update. The mayor 
suggested postponing voting on the process until the next meeting due to council members not being at the 
meeting. Councilwoman Jones asked questions about the proposed nonprofit support process document. Council 
discussed the document. Councilwoman Matthews shared concerns about the requirement that nonprofits are 
limited to being a nonprofit for three years. Council discussed outcomes. Councilwoman Matthews made a 
motion to remove the three-year minimum from the NPO support process policy. Councilman Gaylor seconded 
the motion. A roll call vote resulted in the following vote: Councilwoman Jones, Councilwoman Matthews and 
Councilman Gaylor voted for the motion. Mayor Ham, Councilman Broadaway and Councilman Aycock voted 
against the motion. The motion was tied and Mayor Ham stated the motion fails. The mayor will come back to 
the next meeting with a formal document for Council approval. City Manager Salmon will have more 
information on the funding available in the FY 23 budget at the next meeting.     

Item A



2 
 
 
 
 

 New Business.  
Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni and Friends Homecoming Support Request. Mr. Gary Packer, National 

President for the Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni and Friends Inc. requested $10,000 for the Dillard/Goldsboro 
Alumni and Friends homecoming event. Mr. Packer shared that there will be four food events during the 
homecoming and during the one on Saturday, they want to incorporate the community (to give out free food to 
individuals in the community). He shared that the Saturday and Sunday event estimate will be anywhere from 
$4,000-$5,000 worth of food to accommodate the community. Up until now, it has been members only because 
their organization does not have any major sponsorships. He shared they received $2,500 from Travel and 
Tourism for advertising. Mr. Packer shared information on services provided by Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni. 
Raymond Smith Jr, President of the Goldsboro Chapter of the Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni and Friends Inc. shared 
information regarding the request. They shared information regarding CDBG funding they received in the past. 
They also shared information on the need-based scholarships that are given by the Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni 
and Friends Inc.  

 
Council discussed the general statute that addresses what public tax dollars can be spent for. Catherine 

Gwynn, Finance Director shared the event would have to be open to the general public and it would have to 
serve the public, low to moderate income and/or the elderly (disproportionately advantaged populations). 

 
Councilwoman Jones made a motion to award Dillard Alumni $10,000 for their event. The motion was 

seconded by Councilman Aycock. After a roll call vote was taken, Councilwoman Jones, Councilman 
Broadaway, Councilwoman Matthews, Councilman Gaylor and Councilman Aycock voted for the motion. 
Mayor Ham voted against the motion. The motion passed 5:1.    

 
City Attorney Lawrence shared that the finance director would have to bring back a budget ordinance to 

the next meeting because the funds for the Dillard Alumni are not in the current budget.   
 

Consent Agenda Review.  Each item was reviewed. Additional discussions included the following:   
 
Item O. Downtown Development Department Office Lease Agreement. Council discussed the reason for 

the move. Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development Director shared the DGDC is spurring rehabilitation and that 
their current location has been sold.  

 
Mayor Ham recessed the meeting until 7:00 p.m.   
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular session in Council Chambers, 
City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on April 18, 2022. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones (participating via Zoom) 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Gene Aycock  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Laura Getz, City Clerk  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 

  
 Absent:  Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
  
 
Rev. David Elliott with St. James AME Zion Church provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance 
followed. 
 
Mayor Ham asked that the remaining items on the consent agenda be presented. Police Chief Mike West 
presented items T-W.   
 



3 
 
 
 
 

 Approval of Minutes.  Councilman Aycock made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session 
and Regular Meeting of April 4, 2022. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously 
carried.  A roll call vote was held.  
 
 Presentations.  

Employee Performance Awards. Tim Salmon presented the following awards:  
Employee of the Quarter Award. Victoria Nelson -- Victoria has been instrumental in the transition of 

the new Lab Supervisor at the Water Reclamation Facility. She is always eager to take on new tasks and 
consistently finds ways to increase the efficiency of current duties in order to reduce the time needed to complete 
required tasks. She is a true asset to the Water Reclamation Facility.  

 
Victoria is an outstanding employee, always setting the bar higher for herself and others. Victoria’s work 

ethic and accomplishments reflect well on herself and the City of Goldsboro. 
 
Employee of the Quarter Award. Leroy Lewis -- Leroy has demonstrated competence, resourcefulness, 

courtesy, and has been instrumental in assisting with the transition of management of the Goldsboro Event 
Center. His knowledge of the Event Center, such as where things are, how to transition from one event to 
another, and his customer service skills, along with how things should be run professionally, make him a true 
asset to the Event Center. Leroy ensures contracts are completed, performs walk-throughs for potential events, 
and ensures events are properly set up and fully staffed.  

 
Leroy is an outstanding employee, always setting the bar higher for himself and others. Leroy’s work 

ethic and accomplishments reflect well on himself and the City of Goldsboro. 
 
National Volunteer Appreciation Week Proclamation. David Ham, Mayor of the City of Goldsboro, 

North Carolina, proclaimed the week of April 17-22, 2022 as NATIONAL VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION 
WEEK and urged all citizens to recognize and thank our volunteers across this country and within Goldsboro as 
we acknowledge the importance of our volunteers and take the time to officially thank them for all they do. 
Mayor Ham presented the proclamation to Sherry Archibald, Executive Director of United Way.  

 
Community College Month Proclamation. Read by Councilwoman Matthews; David Ham, Mayor of 

the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, proclaimed the month of April 2022 as COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
MONTH in the City of Goldsboro and encouraged all citizens to observe this month by learning about Wayne 
Community College’s myriad offerings and its value to our economy and our community. Councilwoman 
Matthews presented the proclamation to Dr. Patty Pfeiffer, President of Wayne Community College.  

 
Fair Housing Month Proclamation. Read by Councilman Gaylor; David Ham, Mayor of the City of 

Goldsboro, North Carolina, proclaimed the month of April 2022 as FAIR HOUSING MONTH in the City of 
Goldsboro and encouraged the people of Goldsboro to learn more about their rights and responsibilities under 
the Fair Housing Act for the benefit of themselves and their neighbors. Councilman Gaylor presented the 
proclamation to Tara Humphries, Commission on Community Relations and Development member.  

 
Public Hearings.  
SU-2-22 William Wooten – (Outdoor Storage) E. side of N. George Street between Holly and Vine 

Streets. Public Hearing Held. The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for outside storage associated 
with an automobile towing and recovery operation to be located at 514 N. George St. and within the General 
Business (GB) zoning district.   
 
According to the City’s Unified Development Code and Section 5.5.4 Special Use Specific Regulations, outdoor 
storage is a permitted use in the General Business (GB) zoning district only after the obtainment of a Special Use 
Permit approved by City Council.  

  
Frontage: +110 ft.  

 Area:    20,787 sq. ft. or 0.48 acres 
 Zoning:   General Business (GB) 
  
The site is currently vacant and undeveloped. 
 
Approval criteria for outdoor storage is as follows: 

 
1. All outdoor storage areas shall be located in the rear and side yards.  



4 
 
 
 
 

2. The entire outdoor storage area shall be enclosed by an 8 ft. high solid fence set back from adjoining 
property lines as required by Section 6.3.9 of this code. The height of the fence may be reduced to 6 ft. if 
the applicant provides evidence or written confirmation to the Planning Director that the items proposed 
to be stored will not exceed 5 ft. in height. 

3. No loading or unloading of materials shall occur outside of the fenced area.  
4. Materials shall not be stacked to be visible from any public road right-of-way or adjoining property line.   

 
The existing storage lot has remained vacant for over ten years.  The applicant intends to develop the lot for use 
as an automobile towing and recovery operation providing a comprehensive range of services to include: 

 
1.  24/7 Emergency towing services 
2.  Car and Truck towing 
3.  Motorcycle towing 
4.  Local/long-distance towing 
5.  Auto Wrecker Services 
6.  Fast Accident Response 
7.  Winch outs 
8.  Auto Recovery Services 
 

According to the Unified Development Code, a Special Use Permit is required since outdoor storage is the 
primary use for the site.  The applicant intends to store automobiles on the property for a temporary period of 
time until the automobiles have been cleared for re-assignment or possession by their rightful owner or 
designated agent.  The applicant states that automobiles will not be stored for salvage or parts. 

 
Currently, the applicant is investigating on-site modular office units which are North Carolina Building Code 
approved structures that will serve as the primary facility for transacting business with the general public.  Site 
plan approval will be required before set–up and building permits can be issued. 

 
The applicant intends to comply with the supplemental regulations for outdoor storage in accordance with the 
approval criteria of the City’s Unified Development Code until a commercial office facility can be secured in the 
future. 

 
Access to the site will be provided by a 24ft. wide driveway cut from N. George St.  

 
The proposed use does not require additional parking for the site. 

 
City water and sewer are available to serve the site.  The site is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.     
 
Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed.  

 
No action necessary.  The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on May 
2, 2022. 

 
SU-3-22 Gregory Sakas – (Retail Sales) North side of E. US 70 HWY. between Millers Chapel Rd. 

and E. Ash St. Extension. Public Hearing Held. The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for retail 
sales to be located at 4265 E. US HWY. 70, Goldsboro, North Carolina and within the Airport Business (AB) 
zoning district.   
 
According to the City’s Unified Development Code,  Table 5.4 Permitted Uses and Section 5.5.4 Special Use 
Specific Regulations, retail sales is a permitted use in the Airport Business (AB) zoning district only after the 
obtainment of a Special Use Permit approved by City Council.  

  
Frontage: +115 ft.  
Area:    32,760 sq. ft. or 0.75 acres 
Zoning:   Airport Business (AB); SJAFB APZ-1/NOC 75-80dnl. 
Existing Use:  The site formerly operated as Down East Video.  It is currently vacant and unoccupied.   

 
According to the Unified Development Code, a Special Use Permit is required since the proposed use of retail 
sales is located within the Airport Business (AB) zoning district.  The applicant intends to sell tobacco products, 
as well as, food and miscellaneous sundries.  Site plan approval will be required before building permits can be 
issued. 

 



5 
 
 
 
 

Access to the site will be provided by an existing 20ft. wide driveway cut from 70 E. HWY.  
 

The proposed use of retail sales requires a minimum of eight (8) parking spaces for the site.  Parking spaces shall 
be appropriately striped and shall include spacing for handicap accessibility purposes. 

 
City staff is working with the applicant to insure compliance with the City’s landscaping ordinance. 

 
City water and sewer are available to serve the site.  The site is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area.   

 
Base officials have been contacted regarding the proposed use since it is located in the Accident Potential Zone 
(APZ-1) and the Noise Overlay Contour (75-80dnl).  Once an official response has been submitted to the City, 
Staff will insure compliance with SJAFB development regulations.   
 
Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

 
No action necessary.  The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on May 
2, 2022. 

 
Z-5-22 WithersRavenel – N. Oak Forest Rd. between Central Heights Rd. and Gateway Dr. and 

located primarily in the City’s one-mile ETJ. Public Hearing Held. The applicant is requesting a change of 
zone for the subject property from Residential (R16) to Residential Conditional Zoning (R6CZ) limiting the 
property to a multi-family development complex consisting of three hundred and twelve (312) apartments. 
 
According to the City’s UDO, the proposed development shall meet the multi-family development design 
standards of the R-6 zoning district. 

 
Frontage: +722 ft. (N. Oak Forest Rd.-South)  
  +598 ft. (N. Oak Forest Rd.-East) 
Area:  1,085,950 sq. ft. or 24.93 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 
North:  General Business (GB); 
South: Office and Institutional (O &I-1)/ Industrial Business Park (IBP-1); 
East: Industrial Business Park (IBP-1); 
West: Residential (R-6CZ)/Office and Institutional (O & I-1)    

 
On April 4, 2022, the Goldsboro City Council concurred with the recommendation of the Planning  
 
Commission and adopted an ordinance changing the zoning for property directly west and adjacent to the subject 
property from Residential (R-9SF) to Residential (R-6CZ) limiting the use of the property to a townhome 
development complex consisting of one-hundred and seven units.    
 
Currently, the property consists of agricultural farmland.   
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Industrial development.  
 
The submitted preliminary site plan indicates a total of thirteen (13) buildings and a total of 312 apartments.   
 
Access to the site will be directly from N. Oak Forest Rd.-South and through interconnectivity from property 
directly north and adjacent to subject property.  Staff is working with the developer to determine alternatives to 
the proposed interconnectivity network. 
 
Parking for the site requires two spaces per unit for 1 and 2 BR apartments and three spaces for units over 3 BRs.  
A total number of 509 parking spaces are required.  The submitted site plan shows a total of 541 parking spaces 
for the site.  
 
A common area equal to twenty percent (20%) of the entire development (excluding rights-of-way) shall be 
preserved, maintained and improved by the development owner for active recreational use by residents of the 
development.   
 



6 
 
 
 
 

In addition, the required open space shall be held in common ownership, for the perpetual benefit of residents of 
the development, by a legally established corporation, association or other legal entity, or be dedicated to the 
City of Goldsboro as a public park. 

 
External and internal City sidewalks are required for the proposed development utilizing handicap accessible 
slopes and ramps.  Internal sidewalks are shown for residents of the facility.  Additional sidewalks will be 
required along interconnecting streets for future development purposes. 
 
A commercial lighting plan has not been submitted.  Since the subject property is located adjacent to 
residentially-zoned and developed properties, the developer will be required to submit a lighting plan in 
compliance with the City’s Commercial Lighting ordinance. 
 
Interconnectivity has been shown for the site.   
 
Subject property is located outside of the City limits of Goldsboro.  Since City water and sewer are available to 
serve the property, the site will require annexation into the City limits.  The property is not located within a 
special flood hazard area.  City Engineering will require approval of storm water calculations and drainage plans 
prior to issuance of any building permits.           
 
Street trees will be required along N. Oak Forest Rd. and along the internal access drive for the apartment 
complex.  A Type B 15 ft. wide landscape buffer is required along all property lines and has been shown for the 
development.  
 
All utilities shall be underground. 
 
At least twenty-four square feet of individual enclosed storage space shall be provided for each dwelling unit.  
 
Commercial dumpsters will be utilized for garbage collection.  Staff will ensure that dumpster corals are 
properly constructed and appropriately screened from off-site views in accordance with City standards.   
 
Building elevations have not been submitted. Staff will ensure all multi-family development design standards are 
met per the requirements of the City’s Unified Development Ordinance prior to issuance of any building permits.      
 
Mayor Ham opened the public hearing and the following person spoke: 
 

1. Brendie Vega with WithersRavenel, 137 S. Wilmington Street, Raleigh, NC shared information about the 
conditions to go with the proposed zoning. She also shared information about the site plan.  

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council’s meeting on May 
2, 2022. 

 
Mayor Ham excused the Planning Commission. 

 
Public Hearing to Ratify the Actions Taken Regarding an Agreement with Wayne County and the 

Wayne County Development Alliance. Public Hearing Held. Resolution Adopted. The City of Goldsboro 
entered into an agreement with Wayne County and the Wayne County Development Alliance (WCDA) for the 
construction of a shell industrial building in Park East Industrial Park. The Agreement was approved at the 
Goldsboro City Council meeting on June 5, 2017 and was signed on June 6, 2017. 

 
The agreement was entered into without the proper notice and resolution requirements being met.  The 
information below describes the agreement date, and the name of the company the city entered into the 
agreement with.   

  
a. Location – Park East Industrial Park – Lot #8, Goldsboro, NC  
b. The City agrees to reimburse the County $425,000 of the cost of the building.  $125,000 of this 

contribution is recognized as fulfilling the City of Goldsboro’s commitment to contribute to an 
economic development project with the WCDA during the current Impact Wayne Campaign.   

c. The City agrees that any annexation into the City limits will not be effective until seven years after the 
ownership of the shell building has been transferred to a private party. The County commits that 
property will not be conveyed or leased to a private party unless the private party signs an agreement 



7 
 
 
 
 

with the City that it is requesting annexation as of seven years after obtaining the title to Lot #8 or 
leasing Lot #8.  

d. The source of funding for the project will be appropriated from the General Fund.    
  

Pursuant to NC General Statute 158-7.1(c), staff is requesting that council ratify the actions of the city council at 
their meeting on June 5, 2017 and approve the agreement with Wayne County and the WCDA.  

   
The public hearing notice was advertised in the Goldsboro News-Argus and on the City of Goldsboro’s website 
on Wednesday, April 6, 2022.   

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution ratifying the actions taken by council at 
the June 5, 2017 meeting, and approve the agreement with Wayne County and the WCDA.   
 
Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to adopt the resolution. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Gaylor and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.    
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022–34 “RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE ACTIONS OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY 
COUNCIL AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SHELL INDUSTRIAL 
BUILDING IN PARK EAST INDUSTRIAL PARK” 

 
Public Comment Period.  Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. No one spoke and the public 

comment period was closed.  
  
Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended. Mayor Ham presented the Consent Agenda.  All items 

were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and 
considered separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one 
motion and roll call vote. Item K, Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 209 and 213 N. Georgia 
Avenue (2 lots) (Coe) was moved to Items Requiring Individual Action during the adoption of the agenda. 
Councilman Aycock moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items J, L-W be approved as recommended by the 
City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and a roll call vote resulted in all 
members voting in favor of the motion.    

 
Contiguous Annexation Petition – Magnolia Grove – Located on the east side of Eleventh St. 

between Norwood Ave. and Englewood Dr. Referred to Clerk. The applicant is requesting that contiguous 
property described by metes and bounds in Item 2 of the attached petition be annexed to the City of Goldsboro.  
Maps showing the property proposed to be annexed are attached. City council approved the change of zones 
request for the above property on October 7, 2019.   
 
A change of zone request from Residential (R16 and R9) Conditional District to Residential (R6CZ) Conditional 
District was approved for a 303-lot cluster subdivision.  Wayne Co. Tax Id:  3600-62-9842 (portion of), 3600-
73-1567 (portion of), 3600-64-2938 and 3600-65-2125.  Separate site plan approval was required. 
 
A change of zone request from Residential (R16) to Residential (R6CZ) was approved for a multi-family 
development.  Wayne Co. Tax Id:  3600-53-6324.  Separate site plan approval was required. 

  
A change of zone request from Residential (R9CZ) and Residential (R16) to Office and Institutional was 
approved for future commercial development.  Wayne Co. Tax Id:  3600-73-1567 (portion of) and 3600-62-9842 
(portion of).  Separate site plan approval was required. 

 
Pursuant to G.S. 160A-31, City Council shall fix a date for public hearing on the proposed annexation if the 
petition is considered sufficient by the City Clerk.   
 
The City Council, at their meeting on April 18, 2022 would request the City Clerk to determine the sufficiency 
of the petition.   If the petition is determined to be sufficient, a public hearing would be scheduled and a report 
would be prepared by the Planning Department, in conjunction with other City departments, for submission to 
the Council. 

 
It was recommended that the City Clerk examine the annexation petition to determine its sufficiency. Consent 
Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (6 Ayes) 



8 
 
 
 
 

 
Grant Project Budget Amendment for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 

Investment Partnership Program Special Revenue Fund (C2101). Ordinance Adopted. The Department of 
Housing and Urban Development has granted funding for the CDBG, HOME and CDBG-CV programs for 2021 
to the City of Goldsboro as an entitlement city.  These grants will be managed by the Community Relations 
department. 
   
This fund has been established as a grant project (G.S. § 159-13.2) fund to satisfy the federal grant requirements 
which call for the City to establish a means of tracking the expenditures for Single Audit purposes so that 
external auditors can verify compliance with the various Federal and State grant guidelines in the compliance 
supplements.  The allocations for 2021 have been issued by HUD and accepted by the City as follows: 
 
 CDBG 2021 (B21-MC-37-0019)  $  354,122 
 HOME 2021 (M21-MC370209)  $  250,738 
 CDBG-CV3 (B-20-MW-37-0019)  $  220,749 
 HOME ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) $  907,913 
 Total Funding     $1,733,522 
 
Staff requests that the Council appropriate expenditures in the amount of $1,733,522 so that the terms of the 
grant agreements may be carried out.  The allocation of the expenditures was based on recommendations from 
Ms. Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director and any limits placed on the funds by HUD. 
 
Also, as program activities for the CDBG 2019 and 2020, as well as HOME 2019 and 2020 have been carried 
out for the past two years, it is necessary to reallocate expenses to align with actual expenses among the objects 
of expenditures.  There is no overall net change in the grant amount for each of the years presented for 
amendment. 
  
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Grant Project Ordinance amendment for the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) Special 
Revenue Fund (C2101) in the amount of $1,733,522. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (6 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-13 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) AND HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP 
PROGRAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (C2101)” 
 

Annual Operating Budget Amendment FY21-22. Ordinance Adopted. Council adopted the FY21-22 
operating budget at the June 18, 2021 Council meeting.  The operating annual budget may be amended from time 
to time in order to adjust to current operating conditions. 
 
Please find attached an ordinance amending the annual operating budget for fiscal year 2022 for multiple items 
that have arisen during the current budget year. 
 
Insurance 
As a point of reference, the City expended approximately $627K in multi-peril insurance, $193K in auto liability 
insurance, $150K in worker’s compensation insurance, and $207K in flood insurance for a total of $1,177K in 
non-health insurance related coverage.  The City carries insurance policies for general liability, public officials, 
employment practices, liquor, property, auto, crime, inland marine, law enforcement liability, umbrella, security 
bonds, worker’s compensation, drone, cyber liability and flood. 
 
With the new insurance broker, Arthur J. Gallagher, we have been able to better identify direct costs to the 
departments instead of past methods being used.  When the insurance accounts were initially budgeted for FY22, 
amounts were based on prior budget amounts.  We received detailed allocations of the various costs and are 
correcting those allocations with this budget amendment.  We found that the insurance costs were skewed in favor 
of the general fund, and costs did go up this past year in worker’s compensation (19.24%), auto (89.67%), general 
liability (30.90%), property (12.53%), and umbrella 78.82%. 
 
Costs are charged to each department and the reallocation of budget included in this amendment is broken down 
by fund is as follows: 
 
General Fund Multi-Peril  $155,437 
General Fund Auto   $  15,818 
Stormwater Multi-Peril  $    4,781 



9 
 
 
 
 

Stormwater Auto   $  12,665 
Utility Fund Multi-Peril  $(  8,906) 
Utility Fund Auto   $    8,906 
Occupancy Tax Multi-Peril $       567 
Total     $189,268 
 
General Fund Worker’s Comp  $124,490 
Utility Fund Worker’s Comp  $  17,845 
Occupancy Tax Worker’s Comp $       988 
Total      $136,467 
 
Additional expenditures were funded with prior year loan proceeds that were received in FY22 in both the General 
Fund and Stormwater Fund.  Cell tower lease revenues funded additional worker’s compensation insurance in the 
Utility Fund, and Utility Fund reduced expenditures in multi-peril to cover the additional costs in auto. 
Miscellaneous revenue in the Occupancy Tax Fund funded the additional insurance expenditures, and the 
 
Paramount Theater 
Additional expenditure appropriations have been requested by the director, Mr. Adam Twiss, to fund operations 
until June 30.  The Paramount has experienced revenue levels that have increased back to pre-pandemic levels.  
Revenues were budgeted conservatively in FY22 at approximately $173K, and Mr. Twiss has estimated that 
revenues will increase $282K to a total of approximately $455K.  That is not in addition to the SBA ARPA grant 
received of $332K for the Paramount.  This amendment requests revenue appropriations of $158K to allow the 
Paramount to execute necessary programming through the rest of the fiscal year.  The remainder will be allowed 
to roll into fund balance. 
 
Goldsboro Event Center 
In similar fashion, the Events center has experienced significant growth this year above what was estimated in the 
FY22 budgeting process.  Mr. Twiss has requested additional expenditure appropriations of $22K in order to fund 
operations through the end of FY22, and this will be funded with additional charges for services.  The revenues 
from the GEC were budgeted at approximately $41K and through March have exceeded $54K. 
 
Telephone Costs 
Earlier this year we began a project to better identify and capture Verizon device costs across the City.  We 
partnered with IT to go through the list of almost 300 devices used by the City on the Verizon network.  We were 
able to identify the correct cost centers and have charged these departments according to their device usage.  A 
number of the costs were paid for by IT.  We have reallocated approximately $85K in expenditures to these 
departments and it is being funded with a reduction in expenditures in telephone in the IT department.  The 2 
largest departments are Police at $56K and Fire at $16K. 
 
Fuel Costs 
The City’s fuel costs have risen dramatically this past quarter with no indications of easing in near future.  The gas 
and diesel expenditure accounts are depleted, and additional appropriations are necessary so that we may continue 
to fuel our fleet.  An increase of $146K in gas and $58K in diesel is recommended.  This will be offset by charges 
for services that are billed out to each department, and also to the GWTA.  This will increase the estimated year 
end total to approximately $904K for gas and diesel. 
 
Garage 
The outside repairs account in the Garage is depleted.  There was a major repair to a fire truck for approximately 
$55K that is included in the outside repairs.  Additional expenditures for outside repairs are requested to allow the 
Garage to finish the remaining fiscal year.  This will be offset by charges for services that are billed out to each 
department monthly.  The additional cost of the motor for the Fire Department will be funded with prior year loan 
proceeds. 
 
Property Tax Fees 
Additional property tax listing and collection fees are requested to finish out the fiscal year in the amount of $9.7K.  
This will be funded with an appropriation of additional tax revenues. 
 
Land Sales 
Expenses for the sale of real property in the amount of $26.6K are requested to pay for proceeds split with Wayne 
County and advertising.  This will be paid for with an appropriation of sales of land revenue. 
 
Golf 



10 
 
 
 
 

It is necessary to appropriate additional expenditures for alcohol for resale in the Golf division in the amount of 
$5K.  There were no revenues budgeted for alcohol sales for Golf, however revenues have exceeded $10K through 
March 31. 
 
Repairs Cost for Insurance Claims 
The City has had several insurance claims regarding City property this fiscal year.  We do not budget for insurance 
revenue or insurance repairs  expense during the budget process since we have no way of knowing what department 
might be involved in an accident involving city property.  At this time, we are requesting expenditure 
appropriations to cover costs to repair city property in the amount of $103K and this will be funded with an 
appropriation of insurance proceeds revenue.  The breakdown by fund is as follows: 
 
General Fund  $  80,574 
Utility Fund  $  22,963 
Total   $103,537 
 
Personnel – Police to IT 
In order to assist with the ever growing needs of City for IT services, the Manager has authorized the transfer of a 
position in Police to the IT department.  There is no increase in the total number of FTE’s.  The FY22 Adopted 
Budget was approved with 482 FTE’s.  Council authorized the addition of 7 additional positions to assist Finance 
and IT earlier this year, bringing the total to 489 FTE’s. 
 
Funding will be accomplished by reducing salaries in Police approximately $20K to transfer to the IT salary 
expenditure line item. 
 
Access Drive at the Maxwell Center 
At the September 20, 2021 council meeting, City Council authorized improvements associated with the 
realignment of the access drive at the Maxwell Center with a cost not to exceed $50K (Res 2021-71).  It is necessary 
to appropriate the expenditures for this improvement, and it will be funded with prior year loan proceeds. 
 
Forfeited Performance Bond 
Planning has requested that a performance bond for Preservation North Carolina for 302 S. John Street be 
appropriated to pay for a demolition on this property.  The bond was received 7/15/15 in the amount of $6,950.00.  
The demolition was paid for by the City on 11/4/21 to Corbett Clearing and Demolition, LLC in the amount of 
$5,000.  It is necessary to appropriate expenditures to cover this cost, and it will be funded with forfeited 
performance bond revenue. 
 
General Fund – Other 
There are several other expenditures that have arisen during the current fiscal year making it necessary to 
appropriate expenditures.  These items will be funded will be funded with prior year loan proceeds. Major items 
are listed below: 
 
Solid Waste   Overtime   $  21,000 
Fire    Overtime   $  58,000 
Fire    Vacation Pay Out  $  29,000 
Finance   Audit Fees   $  17,300 
Multiple Departments  Natural Gas    $  23,500 
Parks & Recreation  T.C. Coley   $    5,000 
Parks & Recreation  Fleet Charges   $    8,000 
Non-recurring Capital  Wayne Co Shell Building $142,000 
Total        $303,800 
 
Fund Balance Appropriated – General Fund 
Presented below is the Appropriated Fund Balance for the General Fund as it currently stands. 

 

Date Description Adopted
6/18/2021 Ord 2021-11 FY21-22 Adopted Budget -$               
8/2/2021 FY20-21 Purchase Order Rollovers 156,632.76      

Current Year Appropriations 156,632.76$    

Proposed -$               

Current Year with Proposed 156,632.76$    



11 
 
 
 
 

 
Utility Fund – Transfer to Capital Project 
In the past fiscal year, the City completed the $1.5M upgrade to the Water Treatment Plant to increase the water 
production capacity through the Plate Settlers Project.  The City was responsible for paying the debt issuance costs 
to DWI in the amount of $34,627.  This amount needs to be transferred from the Utility Fund to the Plate Settlers 
Capital Project Fund (W1112), and this will be funded with an appropriation of cell tower lease revenue. 
 
Occupancy Tax Fund 
The Occupancy Tax Fund received a reimbursement of $2,237.49 from NC Sports Association for the Boys NC 
Laxfest, and this miscellaneous revenue will be used to offset various items in the Travel & Tourism budget. 
 
In preparing the FY23 budget, we must also estimate the current revenues and expenditures.  While working on 
the Occupancy Tax fund, it was estimated that revenues for the Civic Center (80%) and Travel & Tourism (20%) 
were going to be higher than originally budgeted, which also means that the expenditure to pay Wayne County 
(40% of both revenues) was going to be slightly short.  An expenditure appropriation of $36K is being requested 
to cover the expenditure for the remainder of FY22 with the balance of $54K being allocated to Contingency.  This 
will be funded with additional revenue for Civic Center (80%) $61K and Travel & Tourism (20%) $28K. 
  

Summary 
                    
Revenues      

Expenditures 
General Fund $1,073,636.32 $1,073,636.32 
Stormwater Fund $17,446.00 $17,446.00 
Utility Fund $75,435.00 $75,435.00 
Occupancy Tax Fund $92,129.00 $92,129.00 
Total Budget Amendment $1,258,646.32 $1,258,646.32 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled FY21-22 Operating Budget amendment for the 
General Fund, Stormwater Fund, Utility Fund and Occupancy Tax Fund. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Aycock/Broadaway (6 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-14 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE   
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2021-22 FISCAL YEAR” 
 

Resolution to Withdraw 211 S. Slocumb Street. Resolution Adopted. Council previously authorized 
staff to conduct a sale of real property under the upset bid statute on Resolution 2020-44 (G.S. 160A-266 and 
160A-269) after receiving an offer from Ms. Imari Olliver. 
 
The item was presented on July 13, 2020 and approved by Council.  No upset bids were received.  It was 
approved by Wayne County on July 21, 2021.  The property and bidder information is summarized below. 
  
 211 S. Slocumb Street 

Offeror:  Imari Olliver  
 Offer:  $2,500.00 
 Bid Deposit: $125.00 (cash) 
 Parcel #:  21850   Pin #: 3509141295 
 Tax Value: $4,200.00  Zoning: 01-Single Family Residential 
 
The City Attorney’s office has tried multiple times to contact Ms. Imari Olliver so that a closing on the property 
at 211 S. Slocumb Street can be finalized.  The last attempt set a deadline of April 1st.   
 
At this time, the City Manager’s office has requested that steps be taken to put the property back on the market 
for sale. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution to withdraw the sale of 211 S. Slocumb 
Street and return the earnest money deposit to Ms. Imari Olliver. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway 
(6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-35 “RESOLUTION WITHDRAWING PROPERTY FOR SALE” 
 

Downtown Development Department Office Lease Agreement. Approved. The Downtown 
Development Department has been a department of the City since 1993, when the existing Downtown Goldsboro 
Development Corporation partnered with the City to form a public-private partnership.  The two entities have 



12 
 
 
 
 

worked successfully together to create and carryout our downtown development efforts as a North Carolina Main 
Street Community for nearly 20 years. Main Street utilizes an approach to preservation-based economic 
development to drive growth in over 3000 historic downtowns across the country. Using the Main Street 
approach, the DGDC and DDD have spurred a significant amount of economic development, resulting in more 
than $66M in public and private investment, 167 building renovations, 400 net new jobs and 68 net new 
businesses just since 2013.  
 
The Main Street approach prompts the DGDC and DDD to work closely together, as they have done since 1993. 
The DGDC is comprised of a private non-profit board, with 24 volunteer members, and four volunteer-led 
committees – Design, Economic Vitality, Promotions and Merchants. The Board and Committees are supported 
by DDD staff, including the Downtown Development Director, Business and Property Development Specialist 
and a Marketing and Administrative Assistant.  
 
In 2008, the City of Goldsboro supported the DGDC’s decision to develop a vacant property behind City Hall – 
219 N. John St. This calculated-risk on behalf of the DGDC was taken in an effort to encourage further 
development in the block, which led to $60,000 of revenue for the City of Goldsboro, after the sale of the 
remaining buildings in the block. By 2020, all four properties surrounding DGDC were rehabbed for a total 
private investment of $2M. 
 
In 2013, the Downtown Development Staff moved in to the newly-rehabilitated 219 N. John Street. In support of 
DDD staff, the city agreed to cover utilities, including power, water, refuse, phone, and internet access, as well 
as janitorial services, and insurance of city-owned property within the building. The DGDC provides the office 
space at no cost to the city, including a large conference room on the 2nd floor. 
 
In 2019, the DGDC Board of Directors began discussions of replicating this effort, realizing the impact their 
investment had on the surrounding properties, and the example it set for other investors. As a result, the DGDC 
purchased the former Record Rack property at 116 N. Center Street – vacant for 14 years and in need of 
rehabilitation. The final investment will be around $600,000 and includes an office space on the first floor and an 
upper-story residential space. The current space generates $920.76 in City and MSD tax revenue, with the 
expected potential city tax revenue of more than $4,500.  
  
The DGDC has proposed to enter into the same arrangement with the City of Goldsboro, providing office space 
for DDD staff, as well as shared use of storage and kitchen space and a conference room. While no lease was 
formally-produced for the current office, staff has produced a formal lease agreement between DGDC and the 
City of Goldsboro for Council’s review.  
  
With support from the DGDC, DDD staff recommends that the City enter into an agreement that includes the 
following: 

1) The DGDC will provide no-cost leasing of office space for staff of the Downtown Development 
Department in perpetuity, until one of the parties opts out.  

2) The City will cover the cost of power, water/refuse, phone, wifi, custodial services, minor maintenance 
and insurance of city-owned property. 

 
It was recommended that Council accept the Downtown Development staff’s recommendation to enter into an 
agreement with the Downtown Goldsboro Development Corporation for placement of Downtown Development 
staff consistent to the aforementioned terms. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (6 Ayes) 
 

Approval of Resolutions to Request Funding through State Grants (American Rescue Plan Act – 
ARPA). Resolutions Adopted. Session Law 2020-79 was signed into law on July 1, 2020 to improve viability 
of the water and wastewater systems of certain units of local government. The State Water Infrastructure 
Authority and the Local Government Commission have developed criteria to assess local government units and 
identify distressed units. 
       
The City of Goldsboro has been designated as a distressed unit and intends to make grant applications for the 
following projects: 
 

• Conduct the rehabilitation of approximately 20,000 linear feet of more than 40-year-old sanitary sewer 
main. This project will use various methods including CIPP, pipe bursting, and open-cut to rehab this old 
infrastructure. The City also proposes to rehab approximately 260 sewer services using T-Liner with 
CIPP, and open-cut. Approximately 130 manholes will be either replaced or lined using a cementious liner 
material.  

 



13 
 
 
 
 

• Modify our current loan to a grant for the 2019 Water Improvements project consisting of various 
locations of 2-inch diameter water lines (galvanized) as well as existing asbestos water lines that require 
replacement. 

 
• Apply for reimbursement of design fees for the 2017 Water System Improvements project paid out to The 

Wooten Company. Staff intends to submit an application using the Pre-Construction Planning Grant – 
without construction. 

The NC Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) is hosting a funding round for the Clean Water SRF and 
Drinking Water SRF programs. Applications are due May 2, 2022. Staff recommends applying for assistance 
through DWI funding for the projects listed above. 
 
Funding requests for the projects detailed above require the adoption of resolutions authorizing the City Manager 
to execute and file applications on behalf of the City of Goldsboro. Any grants received would be brought back 
to City Council for approval. 
  
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolutions authorizing the City Manager to 
execute and file applications on behalf of the City Goldsboro with the State of North Carolina. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-36 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE NC DIVISION OF WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR WASTEWATER SYSTEM 
IMPROVEMENTS” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-37 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE NC DIVISION OF WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR 2019 WATER IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT”  
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-38 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE NC DIVISION OF WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 
DESIGN FEES FOR THE 2017 WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS” 
 

Contract Award for Consulting Services – HOME-ARP. Resolution Adopted. The City of Goldsboro 
seeks consultant services to produce an Allocation Plan describing the planned use of federal funds for housing 
and community development purposes throughout the city. The development of the Allocation Plan will proceed 
additional consultative processes as required by HUD. 
 
Washington Business Dynamics proposes an engagement of several months to manage the process of soliciting 
resident and stakeholder engagement, producing an Allocation Plan, and working with City staff to create a final 
plan suitable for City Council approval and submission to HUD. 
 
The engagement includes: 

• Data Collection, to include Citizen Participation events (Public Hearings, Comment Period, etc.) 
• Performing a Gap Analysis and Priority Needs Assessment 
• Planning & Design to include implementation of a HOME-ARP Compliance Matrix and drafting an 

outline of the Allocation Plan 
• Drafting the required Allocation Plan 
• Presentations to City Council 

 
The engagement begins at Council approval and ends when scope of services are completed. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk 
to execute a contract not to exceed $33,290 with Washington Business Dynamics, for the HOME-ARP 
Allocation Plan. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-39 “RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
OF A CONTRACT FOR THE HOME-ARP ALLOCATION PLAN” 
 

Center Street Jam Concert Series – Temporary Street Closure. Approved. The City of Goldsboro’s 
Downtown Development Dept., in conjunction with the Downtown Goldsboro Development Corporation looks 
forward to hosting the annual Center Street Jam Summer Concert Series. The Center Street Jam is a community-
favorite event, bringing crowds of 1500 – 3500 to enjoy live music, fellowship and food from local vendors. As 
always, Center Street Jam concerts are free, family-friendly and open to the public.  



14 
 
 
 
 

 
The events will be hosted every other Thursday from 6:00pm – 9:00pm at The HUB in the 200 block of South 
Center Street. Event dates are May 5th, May 20th, June 2nd, June 16th, June 30th, July 14th, July 28th, and 
August 11. For the safety of event-goers, the Downtown Development Department and DGDC are requesting the 
closure of the northbound lane of South Center Street from Spruce to Chestnut and a partial closure of East 
Chestnut from Center Street to the Chestnut Street PD parking lot entrance from 4:00pm – 9:30pm.  
 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 
addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments and Public Works Departments are to be involved in the logistical 

aspects of the Event. 
 
It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary closing of the northbound lane of South Center 
Street from Spruce to Chestnut Street and a partial closure of East Chestnut Street from Center Street to the 
Chestnut Street PD parking lot entrance, as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (6 
Ayes) 
 

Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni Parade – Temporary Street Closure. Approved. The Dillard-Goldsboro 
Alumni & Friends, Inc. 67th Homecoming has events scheduled through the weekend to include the 
Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni & Friends, Inc. Annual Homecoming Parade.  
 
The street closing request for Saturday, May 28, 2022 is as follows: 
 
Parade Route: North on Center Street at Spruce Street to Mulberry Street, going around the traffic circle heading 
South on Center Street back to Spruce Street, ending at Spruce Street. 
 
Staging Areas (streets closed for staging):  Pine Street between James Street and John Street; Spruce Street 
between James Street and Center Street; Center Street between Elm and Center Streets.   
 
Additional Closures recommended by the Police Department to manage traffic flow will encompass:  Mulberry 
Street from James Street to John Street; Walnut Street from James Street to John Street; Chestnut Street from 
James Street to John Street; Spruce Street from James Street to John Street; Pine Street from James Street to 
John Street; and Center Street at Elm Street.   
 
Parking Restrictions:  No parallel parking on Center Street from Pine Street to Ash Street. 
 
The time requested for the street closing is from 8:00am to 11:30pm.  Police have indicated that traffic will be 
restricted from 7:00am until 9:30am and all traffic stopped at 9:30am.  The actual parade will begin at 10:00am 
and end at approximately 11:30pm. 
 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 
addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments should be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 

 
It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary street closures of the sections of Pine Street, 
John Street, Center Street, James Street, Spruce Street, Chestnut Street, Walnut Street, and Mulberry Street for 
the Dillard-Goldsboro Alumni & Friends, Inc. 67th Homecoming Parade staging area and parade route from 
8:00am to 11:30am on Saturday, May 28, 2022, as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway 
(6 Ayes) 
 

Jamz Out Juneteenth – Temporary Street Closure. Approved. A celebration of black freedom – 
Music artist, bouncy houses, vendors and food trucks.  
 
The event will be hosted in the vacant lot next to Well-Travelled Beer from 12:00pm – 5:00pm on South Center 
Street on June 18, 2022. The event is sponsored by Curtis Media and they are requesting the closure of the 
southbound lane of South Center Street from Chestnut Street to Spruce Street from 11:00am – 6:00pm.    



15 
 
 
 
 

 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 
addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments should be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 

 
It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary closing of S. Center Street from Chestnut Street 
to Spruce Street as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (6 Ayes) 
 

NC Freedom Fest – Temporary Street Closure. Approved. NC Freedom Fest has a mission to 
celebrate military personnel with an inclusive, family-friendly festival honoring all who serve in the United 
States Armed Forces.    
 
Beginning on Friday night (May 20th), the kid’s zone (inflatables) will open in the large empty lot on S. Center 
Street, during which time food fenders, and the “Grub at the Hub event” featuring the band “Soul 
Psychedelique” will take place.  The following day, the main event (festival) will feature the same kid’s zone, 
food trucks, live entertainment, street fair vendors, the Mt. Olive Pickle train, and a car and bike show. The Parks 
and Recreation Department is requesting the following street closures: 
 

05/20/2022   The North and Southbound lanes of South Center Street from Spruce Street to Chestnut Street 
from 5:00pm – 9:00pm.  

05/21/2022 The North and Southbound lanes of Center Street from Ash Street to Spruce Street; the 100 
block of W. Spruce Street between Center Street and James Street; and Chestnut Street between 
John Street and James Street.  All closure will be from 12:00pm – 9:00pm.    

 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 
addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
5. Certificate of Insurance meeting city requirements will be provided in advance of the event to the city 

finance director and city manager. 
 
It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary closings of the North and Southbound lanes of 
Center Street as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (6 Ayes) 
 

Wayco Center Street Takeover – Temporary Street Closure. Approved. Thompson and Son Group, 
LLC is sponsoring a Wayco Center Street Takeover to include music, food trucks, and small businesses.   
 
The events will be hosted at The Hub from 11:00am – 6:00pm on South Center Street on May 14, 2022. 
Thompson and Son Group, LLC is requesting the closure of the South Center Street, to include both lanes of S. 
Center Street from Elm Street to Chestnut Street from 9:00am – 7:30pm.  
 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 
addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments should be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 

 
It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary closing of S. Center Street from Elm to 
Chestnut Street as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (6 Ayes) 
 

Wayne County Crime Stoppers Caper Chase – Temporary Street Closing. Approved. An 
application was received from the Goldsboro Wayne Crime Stoppers, requesting permission to hold their 2nd 
annual Wayne Crime Stoppers Caper Chase on Saturday, June 25, 2022 from 8:00am to 12:00pm.   
 



16 
 
 
 
 

The race is scheduled to begin at Spruce Street on Center Street and end between Chestnut Street and Spruce 
Street on Center Street and runs through the downtown area of Walnut Street, Jefferson Street, and Mulberry 
Street.  The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices have been notified of this request. 
 
The race has three race routes they will be using for the 10K, 5K, and 1-mile runs.  All three routes will start and 
finish in the same area and will have staggered start times. The time requested for the closing is from 7:00 a.m. 
to 11:00 a.m.  
 
Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the following conditions: 
 1.  All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control. 
 2.  A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to provide access for fire and emergency 

vehicles. 
 3.  All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the Police Department. 
 4.  The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices are to be involved in the logistical 

aspects of this event. 
 
It was recommended that Council approve the street closing of sections of Center Street at Pine Street, Spruce 
Street, Chestnut Street, Walnut Street, and Mulberry Street for the 2nd annual Wayne Crime Stoppers Caper 
Chase on Saturday, June 25, 2022 from 8:00am to 12:00pm. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Broadaway (6 
Ayes) 

 
Departmental Monthly Reports.  Accepted as Information.  The various departmental reports for 

March 2022 were submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that Council accept the reports as 
information. Councilman Aycock made a motion to approve the monthly reports. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Gaylor and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.    

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 209 and 213 N. Georgia Avenue (2 lots) (Coe).  

Deferred. Wayne County has requested concurrence by the City Council for jointly owned city/county-owned 
property at 209 and 213 N. Georgia Avenue (2 lots) which was obtained through tax foreclosure.  The County 
conducted the sale under the upset bid process (NCGS §160A-269), and approved at the April 5, 2022 meeting. 
 
Buyer: Torwanna Coe 
 Sales Price:   $6,000.00 (combined) 
 Bid Deposit:  $300.00 (5% of purchase price) 
 
209 N. Georgia Avenue 
 Tax Value:  $4,480.00       Pin #: 2599677450 
 
213 N. Georgia Avenue 
 Tax Value:  $3,970.00       Pin #: 2599677562 
 
N. Georgia Avenue 
 Tax Value:  $3,160.00       Pin #: 2599678507 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution declaring the properties surplus and  
authorizing City officials to execute instruments necessary to transfer ownership for 209 N. Georgia, 213 N. 
Georgia and Georgia Avenue to Torwanna Coe. 
 
Due to an issue with the upset bid period process, Councilman Aycock made a motion to pull the item off the 
agenda and add it to the meeting on May 2. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Matthews and a roll 
call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion.    

 
City Manager’s Report.  
City Manager Tim Salmon had no comments. 
 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments.   
Councilwoman Jones shared that she was thankful for the collaboration between Commissioner Antonio 

Williams and herself regarding city break-ins. She asked if anyone sees anything to call the police.  
 



C 

OOMctct0U0U

a 

o

Oy

o3

U

p

c

cs

V

Cd

O

U

pp

U

c,

3

rAu

C3

cd

V] 

a3

a

U

N

cd

V) 

cd

al

C3

o q

U

O

03

U

y „ 

Cd

cd

o

U

N

cd

w

cu

40

O

cl) 

14-
4

OU '

C

U

cl

3

o

c

Ocd
O0

N

0

C41O

Q

O

y

U

U

M

44

Cd

Q

O' 

z

x, 

3

cd

b

cz

9.
1

o

3

E

c

N

b

O

L

UCdU

V

Q

iii

10, 

FAN

U

c3

UU











B













C











D













t

NOM

v

v

an

U

c

C

s

E

M

O

d

a

CCO

N

a) 

0

N

t}

o

v

s

aa

m

N

aa

s+ 

OZ

O

p

4 - 

O

0

co

O

O

aJ

L+ 

O

CU

Ln

a

N

U

V

a- 

cu

N ++ 

E

O

NO

WN

00

CU

06

Q1

vIV
v

m

L
I--# 

i a

L

W

M00

s

oU

ai

C

m

O

a

rlChrlN

LM

to

Ln

X

J

OO

MH

L

aJ+' L

C

N

V

Z

N

cQ. 

Q
L

U

u

i' 

z

s

c

s

U

V U

O

O

4••• 

aJ

Om

O

a

W

O

Q

L

Q
Q  

N

sEU
4- 

aJ

V

co

a

Z

N

C

m

O

a) 

E

O

a

c: 

o 

U

Zm

Ln

LUv

0M,

Z

L
L- 

O

C

O

X

U

E. 

tD

E

s

u

H

m

to

U

t

C

O

c

C3

C

O

OA

m

E

M

aCL
C

W

QZ_ 

Q

O

s

a

t' co

v) a

C

O

s

o

a

p= 

U

Q

C° 

m

Q

L)

L

p

a

O

0

O

sL

U

N

0

wO
F- 

m

a) 

OAc 

N

aJ

O

aco

7

v) 

E

M

Ca

0

Q. ++ 

N

O

H

OA

O

C

O

U

N

w

Z

cn

a

O

p

cu

aj

W

O

m

L= 

a

a

s

ZZ
W

0

LO

co

a

to

O — 

Q

Z

W

J

U

1

U

a

C

Q

V  

Z

000C7

ro

L

Oq

in

L= a, 

pw

yli

T

O

O

L

4- 

U

O

Zn

Z

v

E

s

a

j

ag
U

O

p

p

W

0

cam

a

t >

j, 

a) 

H

ZW

ZQ

2H

aJv

OAC

O

C

co

QE

4 ' ++ 
a

u

np

Wm

LL -

O

N

N

Os- 

a

O

O

a

O

O

L

L' 

LLi

W

La) 

a

a

a
L- 

Q

co

Lv

o

J

O

U

v
w

U

It

v

J

LLCU
Q

U

U

ca

L

Ww

Z

Ln

Z

a s

o

vi

O

CU

U

L

C

O

LU

L

c0

Z

to

s

cn

H

O

W

r

N

c

OL

LW

C

a

z

U

Vj

W

O

2

C++ C

V) aJ

Q

O

Q

CL
E

a

N

caa .

a

O

aJs

Z

is

Q

O

Uvs
o

ON2

O>, 

4-
1

s

U

U

O

o

t

UC L- 

r4

N

aJ

N
OM

v

C

E

M

O

d

a) 

O

N

a) 

N

O+ > 

O

m

C

s+ 

O

p

4 - 

O
CU

O

0
O

L+ 

CU

Ln

a- 

L

C

NO

00

CU

CUDC

Q1

vIV

v

LJ

N

L

I--# 

i a

L

W

M00

CO

O

U

I

M

m

r

O

rlChrl
N

LM

to

Ln

X

d

OO

MH

a

N

N

L

C

aJ

N

cQ. 

aJ "

O

a

U

u

M

U

s

c

s

Z

V 
U

25

4••• 

H

Om

O

a

cc

CLO

O

a

Q
Q  

L

V

co

a

O

a) 

m

p'

L

E

a

O

o 

a

Zm

p

aJ

L

L- 

E

C

O

X

U

M

tD

E

cu

u

H

m

to

t

O

c

C3

C

L

m

E

M

aCL

C

O

a; 

m

IA

c0

O

U

0

d

s

U

L

ca

w

M

3

I- m

m

f6

L. w

r4

LO

sL

Z

U

O

r4

W

O

o

O

LA

ca

aJ

M

ti

Q. ++ 

N

C7

H

N

aJ

NOM

vE

coo

a) 

O

Ua) 

O+ > C

s+ 

O

p

4 - 

OCU

O

0
O

L+ 

CU

a- 

a1s

C

co

NO

O

W

LJ

N

co

CO

4-

a

L

o

M

N

Uto

Ln

U

v

v

O

C

aJ

aJ "

O0

Ln

0L

Q

a) 

4••• 

Om

E

cc

Q
Q  

Oli

co

a

m

a) 

m

E

4- 
0

4

U

s

a

p

N

L
L- 

M

Uto

aJ

U

c

a

C

L

a; 

O

C > a, > 

0

E

o

s

s

ca

E

aia

LO

sLo

QO

M

Q



E







RESOLUTION NO. 2022 — 10

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT EXTENSION

FOR THE GOLDSBORO- WAYNE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY ( GWTA) MARKETING AND

PUBLIC RELATIONS SERVICES

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, acting as the Lead Planning Agency for the Goldsboro
MPO, found it in the public interest to expand the public outreach and marketing strategy for Goldsboro -Wayne
Transportation Authority in 2019; and

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro MPO Transportation Advisory Committee approved Quest Corporation of
America, Inc., for marketing and public relations services on June 13, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the City Council deemed it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to award the contract to
Quest Corporation of American, Inc., for the Goldsboro - Wayne Transportation Marketing and Public Relations
services on July 15, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the contract period was for three years, July 2019 through June 2022, and allowing an option to
extend for up to two one- year periods; and

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro -Wayne Transportation Authority Board of Directors requested the contract with
Quest Corporation of America, Inc., be extended and amended in order to draw down 5303 funds for eligible

transit planning activities for one additional year on February 24, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro MPO Transportation Advisory Committee approved the contract extension with
Quest Corporation of America, Inc., for additional tasks associated with Goldsboro - Wayne Transportation

Marketing and Public Relations transit planning services and activities on March 17, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the total fee proposal for the contract extension submitted by Quest Corporation of America, 
Inc., is in the amount of $50, 117. 00; and

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation has agreed to allow the use of 5303 funds to

fund 90% ( 80% FTA and 10% State) of the contract in the amount of $45, 105. 00; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro will be responsible for 10% of the contract in the amount of $5, 012. 00; 

and

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to accept and award the
contract extension to Quest Corporation of America, Inc., in the amount of $50, 117. 00, for one additional year, 

for additional tasks associated with the Goldsboro -Wayne Transportation Marketing and Public Relations transit
planning services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 
that: 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a contract extension with Quest
Corporation of America Inc., in the amount of $ 50, 117. 00 for the Goldsboro -Wayne Transportation

Authority Marketing and Public Relations additional transit planning services for one additional year; 
2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 2°

a
day of May, 2022. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cl r

i

avid m, Mayor





























Item F



Item G



Item H



Item I



Item J


	Agenda 05-02-22
	ws item b - NonResident Fee Presentation with fees
	Slide Number 1
	Background on P&R Program Fees
	Youth Soccer Participation
	Fees Charged by Other P&R Departments
	Fees Charged by Other P&R Departments (continued)
	Goldsboro P&R Proposed Fee Schedule
	Goldsboro P&R Proposed Fee Schedule (cont.)
	Who Qualifies for Resident Discount?
	Items for Council to Consider
	 

	Item A - Minutes 4-18-22
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL
	APRIL 18, 2022
	UWORK SESSION
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on April 18, 2022.
	UCall to Order.U  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.
	URoll Call.
	UCITY COUNCIL MEETING
	UApproval of Minutes.U  Councilman Aycock made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of April 4, 2022. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.  A roll call vote was held.
	UPresentations.
	UEmployee Performance Awards.U Tim Salmon presented the following awards:
	Employee of the Quarter Award. Victoria Nelson -- Victoria has been instrumental in the transition of the new Lab Supervisor at the Water Reclamation Facility. She is always eager to take on new tasks and consistently finds ways to increase the effici...
	Victoria is an outstanding employee, always setting the bar higher for herself and others. Victoria’s work ethic and accomplishments reflect well on herself and the City of Goldsboro.
	Employee of the Quarter Award. Leroy Lewis -- Leroy has demonstrated competence, resourcefulness, courtesy, and has been instrumental in assisting with the transition of management of the Goldsboro Event Center. His knowledge of the Event Center, such...
	Leroy is an outstanding employee, always setting the bar higher for himself and others. Leroy’s work ethic and accomplishments reflect well on himself and the City of Goldsboro.
	National Volunteer Appreciation Week Proclamation. David Ham, Mayor of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, proclaimed the week of April 17-22, 2022 as NATIONAL VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION WEEK and urged all citizens to recognize and thank our volunteers...
	Community College Month Proclamation. Read by Councilwoman Matthews; David Ham, Mayor of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, proclaimed the month of April 2022 as COMMUNITY COLLEGE MONTH in the City of Goldsboro and encouraged all citizens to obser...
	Fair Housing Month Proclamation. Read by Councilman Gaylor; David Ham, Mayor of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, proclaimed the month of April 2022 as FAIR HOUSING MONTH in the City of Goldsboro and encouraged the people of Goldsboro to learn mo...
	UPublic Hearings.

	Item B - SU -2-22
	Item C - SU-3-22
	Item D - Z-5-22
	Item E - GWTA
	Item F - Mental Health Month 2022
	Item G - Police Officers Day 2022
	Item H - National Day of Prayer 2022
	Item I - Military Appreciation Month 2022
	Item J - Municipal Clerks Week 2022

